
 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Friday 19 January 2024 
10.00 am 

Online/Virtual 
 
 

Membership 
 

Reserves 
 

Councillor Renata Hamvas (Chair) 
Councillor Barrie Hargrove 
Councillor Charlie Smith 
 

Councillor Sunny Lambe 
 

 

 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda 
as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your 
children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a 
claim form at the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on 
building access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the 
council’s web site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Contact 
Andrew Weir by email: andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk    
 

 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Althea Loderick 
Chief Executive 
Date: 18 January 2024 
 

 
 

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk


 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Friday 19 January 2024 
10.00 am 

Online/Virtual 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item No. Title Page No. 

 

 PART A - OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS 
 

 

 A representative of each political group will confirm the voting 
members of the committee. 
 

 

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE 
CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

 In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an 
agenda within five clear days of the meeting. 
 

 

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any 
item of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

5. LICENSING ACT 2003: CLUB 701, BASEMENT AND GROUND 
FLOORS, 516 OLD KENT ROAD, LONDON SE1 5BA 

 

1 - 105 

 ANY OTHER OPEN BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF 
THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT. 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

 PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS 
 

 

 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

 The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if 
the sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal 
with reports revealing exempt information: 
 
 “That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following 

items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, 
Access to Information Procedure rules of the Constitution.” 

 

 

 ANY OTHER CLOSED BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START 
OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS 
URGENT. 
 

 

  
 

 

 
Date:  18 January 2024 
 

 

  
 
 
 



Item No.  
5. 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
19 January 2024 

Meeting Name 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Report title: 
 

Licensing Act 2003: Club 701, Basement and Ground 
Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA 
 

Ward(s) or groups affected:  Old Kent Road 
 

From: Strategic Director of Environment, Neighbourhoods 
and Growth 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1. That the licensing sub-committee considers whether it is appropriate to take 

interim steps pending the determination of an application for a summary review, 
made under Section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 by the chief of police for the 
metropolitan police area, of the premises licences issued in respect of the 
premises known as Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, 
London SE1 5BA. 

 
2. Notes: 

 
a) Under section 53A(2) of the licensing act 2003 the licensing authority must 

consider interim steps within 48-hours following the submission of an 
application under Section 53A of the licensing act 2003. 
 

b) A copy of the full application and certificate is attached as Appendix B.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
The Licensing Act 2003 

 
3. The Licensing Act 2003 provides a licensing regime for: 

 

 The sale of and supply of alcohol 

 The provision of regulated entertainment 

 The provision of late night refreshment. 
 

4. Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this 
council. 

 
5. The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with 

a view to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are: 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 The promotion of public safety 

 The prevention of nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm. 
 
 
 
 

1
Agenda Item 5



  

6. In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard 
to 

 

 The Act itself 

 The guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act 

 Secondary regulations issued under the Act 

 The licensing authority’s own statement of licensing policy 

 The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the 
application 

 Relevant representations. 
 

7. The summary review powers under sections 53A to 53C of the Act allow the police 
to trigger a fast track process to review a premises licence where the police 
consider that the premises are associated with serious crime or serious disorder 
(or both); and the licensing authority to respond by taking interim steps quickly, 
where appropriate, pending a full review.  

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
The premises licence 
 
8. The premises licence issued in respect of the premises known as Club 701, 

Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London, SE1 5BA allows 
licensable activities as follows: 

 

 Plays, films, live music, recorded music, performances of dance, 
entertainment similar to live or recorded music, the sale of alcohol to be 
consumed on the premises: 
 
o Wednesday: 22:00 to 02:00 
o Thursday to Saturday: 22:00 to 04:00 
o Sunday: 22:00 to 01:00 

 

 Late night refreshment (indoors):  
 
o Wednesday: 23:00 to 02:00 
o Thursday to Saturday: 23:00 to 04:00 
o Sunday: 23:00 to 01:00 

 

 Opening hours: 
 
o Wednesday: 22:00 – 03:00 
o Thursday to Saturday: 22:00 – 05:00 
o Sunday: 22:00 – 02:00. 

 
9. A copy of the current premises licence is attached as Appendix A. 
 
Designated premises supervisor 

 
10. The designated premises supervisor (DPS) of the premises is Mr George 

Omozejele  
          . 
 

2



  

The review application and certificate 
 
11. On 17 January 2024, the Metropolitan Police Service applied to this licensing 

authority for a summary review of the premises licence issued in respect of the 
premises known as Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, 
London SE1 5BA.  
 

12. On 17 January 2024, a Superintendent for the Metropolitan Police Service certified 
that in their opinion the premises are associated with serious crime, serious 
disorder or both. 

 
13. The application is concerned with allegations of a serious incident that took place 

at the premises on 2 January 2024 between 02:15 and 02:45 when the 
premises should have been closed.  

 
14. Police state that they will provide details of the report Ref: 3001447/24 if 

requested by the licensing sub-committee. The investigation into this offence is 
ongoing and at the time of submitting this report no arrests have been made. 

 
15. At the time of the alleged offence police say that the premise was open to the 

public and here is no provision on licence 870760 that permits this premises to 
be open and providing licensable activities on a Tuesday. There was no other 
authorisation in place such a temporary event notice or non-standard timings. 

 
16. The police add that in November 2019 there was a serious assault inside the 

premises. At the time of this offence the premises was again operating without 
the correct authorisation and was in breach of the premises licence conditions. 
As a result of a summary review the premises licence was suspended. 
Following the full review hearing the premises licence was suspended for a 
period of three months and modifications made including a change of DPS and 
additional control measures. 

 
17. In December 2022 the premises was again found to be operating without any 

authorisation provided by way of a premises licence or temporary event notice. 
A notification of offences was issued by the Police. 

 
18. On the 3 January 2024 the police received credible information that and event 

being held at Club 701 would be attended 'by individuals associated with 
gangs and would commit serious violence. After a number of conversations 
with the premises licence holder the event was cancelled on voluntary basis 
although a closure notice was also issued at the time. 

 
19. The police contend that the incident, which has triggered this review, took place at 

a time when the premises were not being operated in accordance with an 
authorisation permitted by the Licensing Act 2003. They state that if the premises 
had been closed in accordance with the conditions of the premises licence issued 
in respect of the premises, the incident could have been avoided. 

 
20. The police state that they have no confidence in the management of the premises 

and recommend that the following interim step is taken prior to the full review 
hearing in respect of the premises: 

 

3



  

 That the licence is suspended until such time that the full licensing review is 
determined. 

 
21. The licensing sub-committee is not restricted to just considering this step. 
 
22. Copies of the review application and the review certificate are attached to this 

report as Appendix B.    
 
The review procedure 
 
23. The current hearing is for the purpose of considering if interim steps are needed 

as a result of the summary review submitted by the police, prior to the pending full 
review hearing that will be held online on 8 February 2024. 

 
24. The licensing sub-committee is not obliged to hear evidence from other parties at 

this stage of the procedure. However the premises licence holder and DPS have 
been invited to attend the hearing. 

 
25. The review is currently being consulted on and a public notice is advertised at the 

premises for 10 days. Responsible authorities and any other persons may make 
representations that will then be considered at the full hearing of the licensing sub-
committee at Southwark Council’s Offices,160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH. 

 
26. Any interim steps made by the licensing sub-committee at this hearing will cease 

to have effect once the review has been determined. 
 
Operating history 
 
27. A premises licence was issued in respect of the premises to Erico Entertainment 

Limited on 19 February 2016. The licence number was 851424. For reference, a 
copy of the licence is attached to this report at Appendix C.   
 

28. On 8 July 2016 a licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS of the 
premises. At the induction, the terms and conditions of the licence were explained, 
as were the role and remit of the licensing unit. A copy of an induction checklist, 
signed by the DPS, is attached to the report at Appendix D. 
 

29. On 13 August 2016 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a closure notice under 
Section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001. This related to alleged 
breaches of licence conditions 297, 341, 342 and 297. A copy of the closure notice 
is attached at Appendix D. 
 

30. On 10 September 2016 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a closure notice 
under Section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 regarding alleged 
breaches of licence conditions 289, 341 and 342. A copy of the closure notice is 
attached at Appendix D. 
 

31. On 23 October 2016 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a closure notice under 
Section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 regarding an alleged 
breach of licence condition 359. A copy of the closure notice is attached at 
Appendix D. 
 

4



  

32. On 26 November 2016 a second licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS 
of the premises. At the induction the terms and conditions of the licence were 
explained, as were the role and remit of the licensing unit. A copy of an induction 
checklist signed by the DPS is attached in Appendix D. 

 
33. On 2 September 2017 a licensing inspection of the premises was undertaken. The 

premises were found to be being operated in breach of conditions 288, 307, 344, 
345, 349, 353, 357, 379, 392, 4AI & 793 of the premises licence issued in respect 
of the premises.   
 

34. On 14 October 2017 an application to vary the premises licence was submitted. 
 

35. On 11 November 2017 a licensing re-inspection of the premises was undertaken. 
The premises were operating in breach of conditions 289, 307, 341, 342, 364, 377 
and 793.   
 

36. On 19 November 2017 the Metropolitan Police Service visited the premises. The 
premises were operating in breach of conditions 289 and 373 of the premises 
licence issued in respect of the premises. 

 
37. On 11 January 2018 subsequent to the application to vary the premises licence 

submitted on 14 October 2017, and following a licensing sub-committee hearing, 
an amended premises licence was issued to Erico Entertainment Limited. For 
reference a copy of this licence number 860699 is attached to this report at 
Appendix C. 
 

38. On 6 July 2018 the DPS of the premises accepted a simple caution regarding 
offences under the Licensing Act 2003 that occurred at the premises on 2 
September 2017 and 11 and 19 November 2017. A copy of the caution is attached 
at  Appendix D. 

 
39. On 28 August 2018 the Metropolitan Police Service issued a Notification of 

Alleged Offence under the Licensing Act 2003 relating to the unauthorised 
operation of the premises on 28 August 2018. A copy of the notification is attached 
at Appendix D. 
 

40. On 11 June 2019 the DPS of the premises accepted a simple caution regarding 
offences under the Licensing Act 2003 that occurred at the premises on 28 August 
2018. A copy of the caution is attached at Appendix D. 
 

41. On 11 June 2019 a third licensing induction was undertaken with the DPS of the 
premises. At the induction the terms and conditions of the licence were explained, 
as were the role and remit of the licensing unit. A copy of an induction checklist 
signed by the DPS is attached at Appendix D. 

 
42. On 5 November 2019 an application for a summary review was made under 

Section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 by a Superintendent for the Metropolitan 
Police Service. A copy of the application is attached to the report at Appendix E. 

 
43. The licensing sub-committee hearing to consider interim measures was held on 7 

November 2019. A copy of the notice of decision for interim measures is attached 
at  Appendix E. 
 

5



  

44. The final licensing sub-committee hearing, to consider the review of the premises, 
was held on 28 November 2019. A copy of the notice of decision from that hearing 
is attached at Appendix E.  

 
45. Details of any complaints received since the existing licence (870760) was issued 

are attached at Appendix F 
 
46. Details of night time visits to the premises by council licensing officers since the 

existing licence was issued are provided at Appendix G. 
 
47. Details of temporary event notices (TENs) submitted in respect of the premises 

from the date of the existing licence are attached at Appendix H. 
 
The local area 
 
48. A map of the local area is attached at Appendix I.  
 
Southwark Council statement of licensing policy 
 
49. Council Assembly approved Southwark’s statement of licensing Policy 2021 - 

2026 on 25 November 2020. The policy came into effect on 1 January 2021. 
Sections of the statement that are considered to be of particular relevance to the 
sub-committee’s consideration are: 

 

 Section 3 - Purpose and scope of the policy. This reinforces the four 
licensing objectives and the fundamental principles upon which this authority 
relies in determining licence applications. 

 

 Section 5 - Determining applications for premises licences and club premises 
certificates. This explains how the policy works and considers issues such as 
location; high standards of management; and the principles behind condition 
setting. 

 

 Section 6 - Local cumulative impact policies. This sets out this authority’s 
approach to cumulative impact and defines the boundaries of the current 
special policy areas and the classifications of premises to which they apply. 
To be read in conjunction with Appendix B to the policy. 

 

 Section 7 - Hours of operation. This provides a guide to the hours of licensed 
operation that this authority might consider appropriate by type of premises 
and (planning) area classification. 

 

 Section 8 - The prevention of crime and disorder. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the first licensing objective. 

 

 Section 9 - Public safety. This provides general guidance on the promotion of 
the second licensing objective. 

 

 Section 10 - The prevention of nuisance. This provides general guidance on 
the promotion of the third licensing objective. 

 

 Section 11 - The protection of children from harm. This provides general 
guidance on the promotion of the fourth licensing objective. 

6



  

 
50. The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to 

applicants what considerations will be taken into account when determining 
applications and should act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the 
applications. However, the sub-committee must always consider each application 
on its own merits and allow exceptions to the normal policy where these are 
justified by the circumstances of the application. 

 
51. Members should take into consideration both the Southwark statement of licensing 

policy and the Section 182 Guidance when making decisions.  The links for these 
are below: 
 

 Southwark Policy:  
 
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-
licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy  

 

 Section 182 Guidance: 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-
revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003  

 
Community, equalities (including socio-economic) and health impacts 

 
Community impact statement 

 
52. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits 

with all relevant matters taken into account. 
 

Equalities (including socio-economic) impact statement 
 

53. This report does not result in a policy decision and each application is required to 
be considered upon its own individual merits with all relevant matters taken into 
account. In considering the recommendations of this report, due regard must be 
given to the public sector equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010. This requires the council to consider all individuals when carrying out its 
functions. 
 

54. Importantly, the council must have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, harassment, victimisation, or other prohibited conduct; advance 
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between people who have 
protected characteristics and those who do not. The relevant protected 
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. The public sector equality duty also 
applies to marriage and civil partnership, but only in relation to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, or other prohibited conduct. 
 

55. The equalities impact statement for licensing decisions is contained within the 
Southwark statement of licensing Policy 2021 – 2026 at: 

 
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises 
licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy.  

 

7

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises-licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises%20licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/business/licences/business-premises%20licensing/licensing-and-gambling-act-policy


  

56. The equalities impact assessment is available at: 
 
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92016/Appendix%20F%20-
%20Equalities%20Impact%20Assessment.pdf  

 
Health impact statement 

 
57. Health impacts cannot be considered by law when making decisions under the 

Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Resource implications 

 
58. There is no fee associated with this type of application.  
 
Consultation 

 
59. The premises licence holder has been informed of the application for review and of 

the details of the interim hearing. 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Assistant Chief Executive – Governance and Assurance 
 
60. The sub-committee is asked to consider interim steps following an application to 

review the premises licence under Section 53A of the licensing act 2003. 
 

61. The principles, which sub-committee members must apply, are set out below. 
 
Principles for making the determination 
 
62. The licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider interim steps within 48 

hours of receiving an application for review of a premises licence where. 
 

 The application is properly made in accordance with Section 53A of the Act. 

 The licensing authority has considered the ground(s) of review to be relevant 
to the licensing objective for prevention of crime and disorder. 

 
63. The four licensing objectives are: 

 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 The protection of public safety 

 The prevention of nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm. 
 

64. Each objective must be considered to be of equal importance. The authority must, 
having regard to the application and any relevant representations, take such of the 
following steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. The steps are to: 
 

 Modify the conditions of the licence by altering, omitting or adding any condition 

 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 

 Remove the designated premises supervisor 

 Suspend the premises licence. 

8

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92016/Appendix%20F%20-%20Equalities%20Impact%20Assessment.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s92016/Appendix%20F%20-%20Equalities%20Impact%20Assessment.pdf


  

65. The steps will remain in place until the review application is determined at a full 
hearing of the licensing sub-committee. 

 
66. The authority may decide to take no action is if it finds no interim steps are 

appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. 
 
67. In deciding what remedial action if any it should take, the authority must direct its 

mind to the causes or concerns that the representations identify. The remedial 
action should generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more 
than an appropriate and proportionate response. 

 
68. It is of particular importance that any detrimental financial impact that may result 

from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the 
promotion of the licensing objectives in the circumstances that gave rise to the 
application for review. 

 
Reasons 

 
69. Where the authority takes interim steps an application for review it must notify the 

determination and reasons why for making it to: 
 

 The holder of the licence 

 The chief officer of police for the area (or each police area) in which the 
premises are situated. 

 
Hearing procedures 
 
70. Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing committee may 

determine its own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that 
 

 The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority. Cross 
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is 
required for it to consider the representations. 
 

 Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other 
person appearing at the hearing. 

 

 The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 
which to exercise their rights to: 
 
o Address the authority 
o If given permission by the committee, question any other party 
o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require 

clarification, give further information in support of their application. 
 

 The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not 
relevant: 

  
o To the particular application before the committee 
o To the licensing objectives. 

 

 The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the 
public from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest 

9



  

in doing so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the 
hearing, taking place in private. 

 

 In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority 
may take into account documentary or other information produced by a party 
in support of their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either 
before the hearing or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.  

 
71. This matter relates to the review of the premises licence under section 53A of the 

Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee 
 
72. Sub-committee members will note that, in relation to this application, the council 

has multiple roles.  Council officers from various departments have been asked to 
consider the application from the perspective of the council as authority 
responsible respectively for environmental health, trading standards, health and 
safety and as the planning authority. 
 

73. Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion 
solely to perform the role of licensing authority. The sub-committee sits in quasi-
judicial capacity, and must act impartially. It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing 
of the application.   In this case, members should disregard the council’s broader 
policy objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts. Members must 
direct themselves to making a determination solely based upon the licensing law, 
guidance and the council’s statement of licensing policy. 

 
74. As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the 

application on its merits.  The sub-committee must take into account only relevant 
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors. The decision must be based on evidence, 
that is to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-
existence of relevant facts, or the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of 
some future event, the occurrence of which would be relevant.  The licensing sub-
committee must give fair consideration to the contentions of all persons entitled to 
make representations to them. 

 
75. The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises 

if they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open.  The 
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same 
to be relevant.  However, if such events are not properly attributable to the 
premises being open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded. 
Guidance is that the licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of 
the activities taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public, 
living, working or engaged in normal activity in the area concerned. 

 
76. Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to 

declare personal and prejudicial interests.  The code applies to members when 
considering licensing applications.  In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members 
are required to avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias. 

 
77. The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have 

been raised through representations from interested parties and responsible 

10



  

authorities. Interested parties must live in the vicinity of the premises. This will be 
decided on a case to case basis. 

 
78. Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the sub committee needs to consider the 

balance between the rights of the applicant and those making representations to 
the application when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under 
section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can 
to prevent crime and disorder in the borough. 

 
79. There is no right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court against the licensing authority’s 

decision regarding the setting of interim steps at this stage. 
 

Guidance 
 
80. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office revised guidance in 

carrying out the functions of licensing authority.  However, guidance does not 
cover every possible situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and 
carefully understood, members may depart from it if they have reason to do so.  
Full reasons must be given if this is the case. 

 
Strategic Director of Finance and Governance 
 
81. The head of regulatory services has confirmed that the costs of this process over 

and above the application fee are borne by the service. 
 
REASONS FOR LATENESS 
 
82. When an application for an expedited summary review is received from the police 

under section 53a of the Licensing Act 2003 the council’s licensing authority has a 
statutory duty hold a hearing within 48 hours from receipt of the application to 
consider interim steps that may be placed on the premises licence until such time 
as the application can be fully determined. 

 
REASONS FOR URGENCY 
 
83. The council has a statutory duty under section 53a to hold an interim hearing 

within 48 hours of receipt of a summary review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 

 Background Papers  Held At  Contact 

 Licensing Act 2003 
 
Home Office Revised 
Guidance to the Act 
 
 Secondary Regulations 
 
 Southwark statement of  
 licensing policy  
 
 Case file 

 Southwark Licensing,  
 C/O  
 Community Safety and  
 Enforcement, 160  
 Tooley Street,  
 London SE1 2QH 

 Mrs Kirty Read 
Phone Tel: 020 7525 5748 

11



  

 
APPENDICES 

 

 Name  Title 

 Appendix A  Copy of current premises licence (licence number 870760) 

 Appendix B  Copies of the review application and review certificate 

 Appendix C  Copy of the previous premises licence issued in respect of 
the premises (licence numbers 851424 & 860699) 

 Appendix D  Copies of documents relating to the operating history of the    
 premises 

 Appendix E  Copies of previous summary review and notice of decisions 

 Appendix F  Complaints log 

 Appendix G  Night time economy team visits log 

 Appendix H  Details of temporary event notices submitted in respect of the  
 premises 

 Appendix I  Map of local area 

 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 

 

Lead Officer Caroline Bruce, Strategic Director of Environment, 
Neighbourhoods and Growth 

Report Author Jayne Tear, Principal Licensing Officer 

Version Final 

Dated 18 January 2024 

Key Decision? No 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / 
CABINET MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments sought Comments included 

Assistant Chief Executive – 
Governance and Assurance 

Yes Yes 

Strategic Director, Finance  Yes Yes 

Cabinet Member  No No 

Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 18 January 2024 

 

12



Premises licence number 870760 

 Part 1 - Premises details  

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Club 701 
Basement and Ground Floors 
516 Old Kent Road 

Ordnance survey map reference (if applicable): 534180177968 
Post town 
London 

Post code 
SE1 5BA 

Telephone number 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Plays - Indoors 
Films - Indoors 
Live Music - Indoors 
Recorded Music - Indoors 
Performance of Dance - Indoors 
Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors 
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 

The opening hours of the premises. For any non standard timings see Annex 2 

Wednesday  22:00 - 03:00 
Thursday  22:00 - 05:00 
Friday  22:00 - 05:00 
Saturday  22:00 - 05:00 
Sunday  22:00 - 02:00 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence 

Plays - Indoors 
Wednesday       22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday       22:00 - 04:00 
Friday       22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday       22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday       22:00 - 01:00 

Regulatory Services 
Licensing Unit 

Hub 1, 3rd Floor 
PO Box 64529 

London, SE1P 5LX 

APPENDIX A13



 

Page 2 of 17 

Films - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Live Music - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Recorded Music - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Performance of Dance - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors 
Wednesday        23:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            23:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 23:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             23:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               23:00 - 01:00 
 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 
Wednesday        23:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            23:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 23:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             23:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               23:00 - 01:00 

14



15



 

Page 4 of 17 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence - 

(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or 

(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal 

Licence is suspended. 

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who 

holds a Personal Licence. 

102 The admission of children to films given under this licence must be restricted in accordance with the 

recommendations of the British Board of Film Classification or of the licensing authority itself. 

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 

substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises - 

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals 

to - 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises 

before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public 

or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining 

a licensing objective; 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase 

and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of 

undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the 

premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or 

to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person 

is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability). 

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where 

it is reasonably available. 

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification 

policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of 

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

 

16



 

Page 5 of 17 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or 

such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 

identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either 

(a) a holographic mark; or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

489 The responsible person shall ensure that - 

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other 

than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures - 

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint; 

(ii) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to 

customers on the premises; and 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the 

customer is made aware that these measures are available, 

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1): 

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqour Duties Act 1979; 

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula 

P = D + (D x V), 

where- 

(i) P is the permitted price, 

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of 

the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence - 

(i) the holder of the premises licence: 

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or 

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence; 

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 

certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 

member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be 

17



 

Page 6 of 17 

a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually 

given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day 

("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 

change to the rate of duty or value added tax; 

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take 

place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

 

18



 

Page 7 of 17 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule  

276 That the premises shall be adequately ventilated to allow doors and windows to remain closed during 

licensed entertainment. 

288 That a CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in full working order. The CCTV system will 

record footage of evidential quality in all lighting conditions and should be able to capture a clear facial 

image of all persons that enter the venue. All public areas will be covered by the CCTV system including the 

bar and smoking areas. The premises shall not be open at any time when the CCTV is not operating 

correctly. 

289 All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days and shall be made immediately 

available for inspection to officers of the Police and the Council on request. 

297 That a drugs / weapons amnesty box, approved by the police, shall be installed and maintained in use 

at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation. 

302 The manager shall notify the police of all drugs or weapons seized and deposited in the amnesty box as 

soon as possible and arrange for the police to collect the contents of the amnesty box as soon as is 

practicable to do so. 

303 That the licensee shall require any regular and external promoters or any other 3rd parties hiring the 

premises to complete the 'Venue Hire Agreement' provided by Southwark Police Licensing Unit and, once 

completed, you shall ensure that a copy of the agreement is provided to the central licensing unit as detailed 

on the form 696 and to Southwark Police Licensing Unit a minimum of fourteen days prior to the date of hire. 

305 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen 

and read, requesting that patrons leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner that is respectful to 

neighbours. 

307 That an accommodation limit shall be set in respect of the premises. All staff at the premises shall be 

made aware of the accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the premises shall be 

responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded and shall use counting devices to 

ensure that the accommodation limit is not exceeded. Once the accommodation limit of the premises has 

been reached the premises shall operate a 'one in, one out' policy. 

309 That a sound limiting device shall be installed, set and maintained, to ensure the maximum levels of 

volume and bass of music, song or speech from licensed entertainment permitted by the amplification 

system, does not cause a public nuisance in the vicinity of the premises or intrude inside the nearest or most 

exposed noise sensitive premises. 

320 That the sound level of the music being played at the premises will be gradually reduced until no music 

is audible during the hour before the premises shuts. During this period lighting levels at the premises will be 

gradually increased until the premises are fully lit. 

336 That a personal licence holder is on the premises and on duty at all times after 22:00 when intoxicating 

liquor is supplied. 

 

19



 

Page 8 of 17 

340 That there shall be at least on member of staff on duty at all times the premises are in operation who is 

trained and proficient in the operation of the CCTV system and who is capable of operating and retrieving 

footage at the request of police, council or other authorised officers. 

342 That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the Police shall be 

installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable of sharing information about 

banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be 

able to identify fake or forged ID documents to a reasonable standard. The system must be operating 

correctly at all times when the premises are open and will be used to record the details of all persons 

entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their assistants. Entry to the 

premises will not be permitted without the production of the relevant ID document and / or if the person's 

details are already stored on the system and they are identified using a biometric identification system. 

343 That at all times the premises are in operation under the premises licence there will be at least one 

member of staff trained to a satisfactory standard able to operate the ID scan system and able to retrieve 

data from the system on request of police, council or or other authorised officers. 

346 That the internal security door leading to the Old Kent Road will be fitted with an automatic security light 

and sound cut-out device which will automatically shut down all music systems when opened. 

347 That all beverages will be served in plastic / polycarbonate receptacles, no glasses or bottles will be 

permitted in the public areas of the venue. 

348 That all incidents of violence and / or disorder that result in an injury will be reported to the police as 

soon as practicable. The reasoning behind any delayed report will be recorded in the incident report book. 

This report book will be made available for inspection by police, council or other authorised officers on 

request. 

349 That acoustic seals, brushes and self-closers (in accordance with BS 6459 Pt. 1 1984) shall be installed 

to all doors and fire doors leading out into external areas so as to minimise sound escape from the 

premises. 

350 That sound insulation shall be installed to baffle any vents or air extraction systems to prevent sound 

escape from the premises. 

351 That all external plant required for the operation of the premises (air handling plant, condensers, kitchen 

extraction systems, etc.) shall be designed, installed and maintained to ensure that noise output from the 

external plant does not cause a public nuisance or intrude inside the nearest, or most exposed, noise 

sensitive premises. 

352 That amplified music, song or speech shall not be broadcast in external areas at any time. 

353 That no drinks shall be permitted outside at any time. 

354 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen 

and read, requesting to the effect that patrons do not take drinks outside. 

355 That any queue to enter the premises must be contained within suitable barriers and supervised at all 

times by door supervisors 

20



 

Page 9 of 17 

356 That external waste handling and cleaning of external areas, collections and deliveries shall only occur 

between the hours of 08.00hrs and 23.00hrs. 

357 That a comprehensive Dispersal Policy shall be produced and implemented at the premises, with all 

staff trained on the most up to date policy. A record of staff training on the Dispersal Policy shall be kept at 

the premises and a copy of the policy and such training records shall be made available to the council or 

police on request. 

358 That licensable activities shall cease at a minimum 30 minutes before the premises' closing hours. 

359 That on Sunday after 00:30, on Wednesday and Thursday after 01:30 and on Friday and Saturday after 

02:00 there shall be no new entry to the premises, other than those who leave the premises for the purpose 

of smoking a cigarette, those persons shall be subject to a further search on the re-entry to the premises. 

362 That all security staff shall be in radio communication with each other and the duty manager whilst 

working at the premises. 

363 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by 

customers warning of potential criminal activity that may target patrons such as theft. 

364 An incident book / incident recording system shall be kept at the premises to record details of any of the 

following occurrences at the premises: 

• Instances of anti-social or disorderly behaviour 

• Violence 

• Calls to the police or fire brigade 

• Abuse of staff and / or customers 

• Ejections of people from the premises 

• Visits to the premises by the local authority, police or fire brigade 

• Refused sales of alcohol 

• Any malfunction in respect of the CCTV system Seizures of drugs at the premises 

• Any other relevant incidents 

The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location and description of each 

incident, the printed and signed name of the person reporting the incident and any action taken in respect of 

the incident. The incident book / incident recording system shall be available / be accessible at the premises 

at all times that the premises are in use in accordance with this licence and shall be made available to 

officers of the council, police or fire brigade on request. 

365 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by 

customers stating that all customers will be searched prior to entering the premises. 

366 That security staff should always attempt to search in front of a witness or, if possible, carry out the 

search within sight of the CCTV camera at the entrance to the Club. 

367 That any person who appears under the influence of drugs and will be refused entry. 

368 That where there is a suspicion that an individual is in possession of drugs that individual will be 

requested to submit to a search. If the individual refuses the search they will be ejected from the premises. 

21



 

Page 10 of 17 

Any person found in possession of drugs will be instructed to place the drugs in the drugs amnesty box at 

the premises. 

369 That the police will be called immediately if a person is found with a large quantity of drugs that 

suggests intent to supply, or in cases where a particularly dangerous weapon is found such as a firearm. No 

attempt will be made to force the person to remain at the premises however a good description of the person  

must be taken and be provided  to the police  In all cases where drugs or weapons are found on a person a 

detailed note shall be made in the incident log. 

370 That any person who appears to any staff member to be intoxicated and will be refused entry to the 

premises. 

371 That re-entry to the premises will not be permitted to any customer who has been ejected earlier on 

during a particular night, who has been banned or who hasin any way aggressively supported a person 

being ejected. 

372 That customers shall not be permitted to wear sunglasses, save for prescription glasses, inside the 

venue. 

373 That customers shall not be permitted to wear hats or hoods whilst inside the venue. 

374 That SIA staff shall periodically monitor who enters and exits parking lot. 

375 That the premises management reserve the right to ban anybody from the premises at any time or 

refuse entry to the premises by anybody at any time. The premises reserve the right to refused entry without 

explanation. 

376 That prior to entry or re-entry all customers must be subject to a search by the SIA security staff 

employed at the premises. Any person refusing such a search will not be permitted entry or re-entry to the 

premises. 

377 That customers shall be instructed that bulky items such as bulky bags and coats must be left in the 

cloakroom before entering the main area of the club. Anyone who refuses to place these types of belongings 

in the cloakroom will not be able to enter the main area of the club 

378 That all promoters hiring and using the premises must have attained a BIIAB Level 2 Award for Music 

Promoters prior to hiring and using the premises. 

379 That prior to the premises opening, security checks of the premises and the immediate vicinity that the 

premises are located in shall be undertaken. Details of such checks shall be recorded in the incident log. 

380 That security staff employed at the premises will be trained to be aware of what is happening inside the 

premises as well as on the door, and shall be instructed that patrols around the premises may be necessary. 

Consideration must be given to any hot spots within the premises and especially in the smoking area and 

regular monitoring of such areas must undertake by the security staff. 

381 That security staff shall be trained to be alert to and respond to alarms given by the DJ, toilet attendants 

or any other staff employed at the premises. 

382 That any customer who engages in anti-social behaviour in the smoking area shall not be permitted re-

entry to the premises. 

22



 

Page 11 of 17 

 

383 That customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises. 

Clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by customers 

stating that customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises. 

384 That staff who arrive early morning or depart late at night will be instructed to conduct themselves in 

such a manner to avoid causing disturbance or nuisance to nearby residents. 

386 That staff shall remove drinks receptacles from patrons who are attempting to leave the premises. 

388 That staff will advise customers not to congregate outside the premises or in the locale and shall be 

encouraged to disperse from the area. Any customers who are acting in a noisome or anti social manner 

when leaving the premises or when immediately outside of the premises will be requested to cease such 

behaviour. 

389 That two licensed taxi firms in the local area will be available to customers, so they can arrange suitable 

transportation home. If staff at the premises order a taxi for a customer they shall request that the taxi 

controller instructs the taxi-driver not to sound the vehicle's horn on arrival, but to approach a staff member 

and let the staff member know that the driver has arrived. Staff will inform the patron upon the arrival of their 

taxi. 

390 That a member of management will be visible with the door team until all customers have dispersed and 

shall ensure that the door team are acting effectively and in line with their responsibilities. 

391 That easily identified staff in high visibility vests will be assisting in customer dispersal, the clearing of 

any waste arising from the operation of the premises (including 'fliers') and the monitoring of customers 

whilst they move away from the premises. 

392 That the location of car parks in the area and other travel facilities shall be identified on all promotional 

materials, including the premises' website. 

393 That there will be enough staff in the cloakroom to ensure orderly and timely return of coats / 

possessions to customers. 

394 That details of transport links in the area (e.g. public transport options, taxi ranks etc.) shall be made 

available to customers on request. 

395 That the document titled 'Operational Polices for Club 701' as submitted on application for this licence 

shall be amended to reflect the conditions stated in this licence. 

396 That on Sundays prior to Bank Holiday Mondays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve the permitted 

opening hours of the premises are between 22:00 to 05:00 and licensable activities must cease at 04:00 on 

these days. 

431 That during any licensed entertainment on the premises all doors and windows leading out to external 

areas shall remain closed. 

430 That there shall be no movement of musical or amplification equipment to and from the premises 

between the hours of 23.00hrs and 08.00hrs. 

 

23



 

Page 12 of 17 

4AA That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling alcohol 

request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is attempting to purchase alcohol, 

provides valid photographic identification proving that the customer is at least 18 years old. Valid 

photographic identification is composed of a driving licence, passport, UK armed services ID card and any 

Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as the Proof of Age London (PAL) card. 

4AK That the licensee, premises' management or premises' DPS shall attend local 'Pub Watch' meetings if 

a 'Pub Watch' scheme exists in the local area. 

 

 

24



 

Page 13 of 17 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority   

840 That all directors and management of MYTRIBE Limited shall not be allowed any involvement in the 

running of the premises at any time that licensable activities are taking place. 

841 That a minimum of 3 SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the premises if the premises 

open before 00:00 hours, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. They will be 

employed each night that the premises are in operation and will be on duty to receive patrons at the stated 

opening time of 22:00; after 00:00 hours, a minimum of 6 SIA registered door supervisors shall be 

employed, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. At least two will be 

provided with, and will use, electronic search wands. The electronic search wands shall be used at all times 

that the premises are open in respect of the search of all persons who wish to enter the premises. This 

includes all DJ's and associated staff and their equipment 

842 That the premises will be closed on Wednesdays. 

843 That the measures set out in the licensing compliance plan submitted by the premises licence holder 

shall be implemented in full prior to the reopening of the premises. 

Licensing Compliance Plan 

The proposal is in five parts; (1) set up the policies and procedures,(2) provide staff training, (3) conduct 

regular licensing audits to measure performance and provide due diligence evidence, (4) to provide ongoing 

advice, support and to review any incidents / issues that arise & (5) conclusions. 

1. Policies and Procedures 

I. A qualified licensing consultant shall undertake a full review of the operation of the premises and produce 

a comprehensive licensing Operational Manual which would contain licensing policies and  procedures. The 

manual would demonstrate best practice in all areas. It would also form part of induction for new members of 

staff and the ongoing training of existing staff. 

II. The Operational Manual will set out the premises minimum operating standards and the policies and 

procedures to be followed by all staff. 

III. The Operational Manual shall be a 'living' document and will be reviewed regularly to ensure current best 

practice and that any changes at the premises or to licensing laws are addressed. 

IV. The Operational Manual shall include, but not be limited to, the following policies and procedures. 

• Customer Vetting and Terms of Entry 

• Young People 

• Searching and Seizure of Prohibited Items 

• Preventing and Dealing with Intoxication 

• Drugs 

• Crime Prevention and Intervention 

• Guest Welfare 

• Ejections 

• Security Roles, Responsibilities and Code of Conduct 

25



 

Page 14 of 17 

• Security Code of Conduct 

• Dealing with Serious Incidents 

• Sexual Assaults 

• Crime Scene Preservation 

• Theft Prevention 

• Staff Behaviour and Code of Conduct 

• Events & Private Hire 

• Management of Outside & Dispersal 

• Smoking 

• Incident Reporting & Due Diligence Records 

• CCTV, Body Worn Cameras and Identity Scanning Systems 

2. Staff Training 

V. All serving staff will participate in the RASPFLO on-line training course (Responsible Alcohol Sales and 

Promoting the Four Licensing Objectives -www.raspflo.co.uk). This is specifically aimed at serving staff, with 

a focus on the practicalities of their work role and responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003. 

VI. Each member of staff will complete RASPFLO training every year with a six month refresher session. 

VII. A written record will be kept of all staff training and be available for inspection by the statutory 

authorities. 

VIII. The RASPFLO course covers the following areas: 

Unit 1 - An Introduction to the Licensing Act 2003 

• Understanding the importance of compliance and protecting your Licence. 

• The requirements for having a Licence 

• The difference between a personal and a premises Licence 

• Mandatory and venue specific conditions 

• The penalties for breaching conditions 

Unit 2 - The Four Licensing Objectives 

• The importance of promoting the objectives at all times 

• The meaning and significance of each objective 

• Learning methods to promote the objectives. 

Unit 3 – Intoxication 

• The dangers intoxication poses, the requirements of the law and the tools to deal with the issue effectively. 

• The effects of alcohol on the body 

• How to identify and deal with intoxicated guests 

• The best methods to prevent intoxication. 

Unit 4 – Age 

• The law in relation to children 

• How to check IDs 

26



 

Page 15 of 17 

• Recognising valid forms of ID 

• Identifying invalid IDs. 

Unit 5 - Crime Scene Preservation 

• When a crime scene should be preserved 

• Actions to take following a serious incident 

• How to ensure the preservation of a crime scene. 

Unit 6 - Factors that Affect Drinking Behaviour 

• The factors that affect irresponsible alcohol consumption 

• How to promote a safe and responsible environment 

• How to positively influence a responsible and safe drinking culture. 

IX. All managers, and staff involved in a supervisory role, will undergo RASPFLO managers training, and 

advanced version of the course. 

X. The managers' version of RASPFLO also includes the six units in the staff course and also covers the 

following areas: 

• Closure Powers 

• Preventing Drug Use / Dealing 

• Crime Prevention and Intervention 

• Guest Welfare 

• Ejections 

• Conflict Management 

• Dealing with Serious Incidents 

• Incident Reporting 

• Daily Due Diligence Records 

XI. A qualified licensing consultant shall also be supplementary bespoke training for staff and managers on 

the Operational Manual. This training will use the incident of 31st October 2019 as an example of the 

dangers that can arise as well as the lessons learnt and procedures implemented to prevent further issues 

following that incident. 

3. Licensing Audits 

XII. Comprehensive licensing audits of the premises would be conducted by a qualified licensing consultant 

to ensure compliance with the Licensing Act 2003, the promotion of the four licensing objectives and any 

specific conditions attached to the premises licence. 

XIII. The audits will measure the success and effectiveness of operational procedures and aim to build a 

body of positive due diligence evidence for the premises. They also serve as a management tool; giving 

confidence that the premises is compliant and acts as an early warning system if issues are identified. 

XIV. The audits would cover the following areas: 

• Licences and Signage 

• Licence Compliance 

27



 

Page 16 of 17 

• Door Supervisors 

• Outside Management 

• Fire Safety 

• Record Keeping 

• Internal Management 

• Toilets 

• CCTV & ID Scanning Equipment 

XV. The audits would be conducted twice a month for the first 6 months after the premises re-opens. 

XVI. The audits would be unannounced and be carried out whilst the venue was trading at peak times. 

4. Ongoing Support 

XVII. A qualified licensing consultant shall regularly re-evaluate the compliance regime at the premises, 

taking into account shifting circumstances, changes in legislation, best practice and current guidance from 

the authorities. 

XVIII. A qualified licensing consultant shall review all incident reports and provide an assessment of the 

incident, giving recommendations, advice and support as applicable. This may include reviewing CCTV, 

writing additional policies / action plans and providing additional staff training plans. 

XIX. A qualified licensing consultant shall provide record books regarding licensing due diligence compliance 

(refusals, clicker counts, pre-opening checks etc.). The record books shall provide a comprehensive system 

that is simple to use. 

5. Conclusions 

XX. The measures detailed in this plan have proven highly effective and successful at many busy late 

licensed clubs and bars. 

XXI. The compliance plan requires a clear commitment from the leadership of the business. The licensee 

has assured the licensing sub-committee that the licensee is fully committed to implementing and following 

the compliance plan. 

844 That there shall be no shisha smoking equipment on the premises at any time. 

845 That all security staff at the premises shall be supplied by an SIA approved contractor. 

 

28



 

Page 17 of 17 

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached 

Licence No. 870760 

Plan No. 01 

Plan Date 11.12.13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29



APPENDIXB

METROPOLITAN 
POLICE 

PROTECTIVE MARKING 

TOTAL POLICING 

Form for Applying for a Summary Licence Review 

Form 693 

Application for the review of a premises licence under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 
(premises associated with serious crime, serious disorder or both) 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are completing the form by 
hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and! written in 
black ink. 
Use additional sheets if necessary. 

Insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference number: 

Name: London Borough Of Southwark Licensing Authority 
---�--------

Address: 

3rd Floor 160 Tooley Street 

Post town: ; Southwark

Ref. No.: 

1 Police Constable Ian Clements

Post ��od-=-e=: ��_--I _s_E_1_2_Q_H __ _ 

on behalf of the chief officer of police for the Metropolitan Police area apply for the review of a premises 
licence under section 53A of the Licensin Act 2003. 

1. Premises details

Postal address of premises or club premises, or If none, ordnance survey map reference or description: 
--�--• 

Club 701, 516 Old Kent Road 

Post town: 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club pr8(_11lses certificate (If known): 

Erico Entertianment Limited 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known): 

870760 

3. Certificate under section 53A(1 )(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Please read guidance note 1)

I confinn that a certificate has been given by a senior member of the pollce force for the police area above 
that In his opinion the above premises are associated with serious crime or serious disorder or both, and the 
certificate accompanies this application. 

Please tick the box to confirm: -i-�--------------
-�-�������-��-

30



31



32



Premises licence number 860699 

Part 1 - Premises details  

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Club 701 
Basement And Ground Floors 
516 Old Kent Road 
London 
SE1 5BA 

Ordnance survey map reference (if applicable), 
177968534180 
Post town 
London 

Post code 
SE1 5BA 

Telephone number 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Plays - Indoors 
Films - Indoors 
Live Music - Indoors 
Recorded Music - Indoors 
Performance of Dance - Indoors 
Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors 
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 

The opening hours of the premises  

For any non standard timings see Annex 2 

Wednesday  22:00 - 03:00 
Thursday  22:00 - 05:00 
Friday  22:00 - 05:00 
Saturday  22:00 - 05:00 
Sunday  22:00 - 02:00 

Regulatory Services 
Licensing Unit 

Hub 1, 3rd Floor 
PO Box 64529 

London, SE1P 5LX 

APPENDIX C33



 

Page 2 of 15 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 

  

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence 
 
Plays - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Films - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Live Music - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Recorded Music - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Performance of Dance - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors 
Wednesday        23:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            23:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 23:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             23:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               23:00 - 01:00 

34



 

Page 3 of 15 

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 
Wednesday        23:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            23:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 23:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             23:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               23:00 - 01:00 

35



36



 

Page 5 of 15 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  

 

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -  

(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or 

(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal 

Licence is suspended. 

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who 

holds a Personal Licence. 

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 

substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises - 

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals 

to - 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises 

before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public 

or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining 

a licensing objective; 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase 

and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of 

undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the 

premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or 

to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person 

is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability). 

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where 

it is reasonably available. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37



 

Page 6 of 15 

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must  ensure that an age verification 

policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of 

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or 

such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 

identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either 

(a) a holographic mark; or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

489 The responsible person shall ensure that - 

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other 

than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures - 

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint; 

(ii) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to 

customers on the premises; and 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the 

customer is made aware that these measures are available, 

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1): 

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqour Duties Act 1979; 

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula P = D + (D x V), where- 

(i) P is the permitted price, 

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of 

the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence - 

(i) the holder of the premises licence: 

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or 

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence; 

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 

certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 

member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

38



 

Page 7 of 15 

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be 

a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually 

given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day 

("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 

change to the rate of duty or value added tax; 

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take 

place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

39



 

Page 8 of 15 

 Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule  

  
276 That the premises shall be adequately ventilated to allow doors and windows to remain closed during 

licensed entertainment. 

288 That a CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in full working order. The CCTV system will 

record footage of evidential quality in all lighting conditions and should be able to capture a clear facial 

image of all persons that enter the venue. All public areas will be covered by the CCTV system including the 

bar and smoking areas. 

289 All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days and shall be made immediately 

available for inspection to officers of the Police and the Council on request. 

297 That a drugs / weapons amnesty box, approved by the police, shall be installed and maintained in use 

at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation. 

302 The manager shall notify the police of all drugs or weapons seized and deposited in the amnesty box as 

soon as possible and arrange for the police to collect the contents of the amnesty box as soon as is 

practicable to do so. 

303 That the licensee shall require any regular and external promoters or any other 3rd parties hiring the 

premises to complete the 'Venue Hire Agreement' provided by Southwark Police Licensing Unit and, once 

completed, you shall ensure that a copy of the agreement is provided to the central licensing unit as detailed 

on the form 696 and to Southwark Police Licensing Unit a minimum of fourteen days prior to the date of hire. 

305 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen 

and read, requesting that  patrons leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner that is respectful to 

neighbours. 

307 That an accommodation limit shall be set in respect of the premises. All staff at the premises shall be 

made aware of the accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the premises shall be 

responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded and shall use counting devices to 

ensure that the accommodation limit is not exceeded. Once the accommodation limit of the premises has 

been reached the premises shall operate a 'one in, one out' policy. 

309 That a sound limiting device shall be installed, set and maintained, to ensure the maximum levels of 

volume and bass of music, song or speech from licensed entertainment permitted by the amplification 

system, does not cause a public nuisance in the vicinity of the premises or intrude inside the nearest or most 

exposed noise sensitive premises. 

320 That the sound level of the music being played at the premises will be gradually reduced until no music 

is audible during the hour before the premises shuts. During this period lighting levels at the premises will be 

gradually increased until the premises are fully lit. 

336 That a personal licence holder is on the premises and on duty at all times after 22:00 when intoxicating 

liquor is supplied. 

 

 

40



 

Page 9 of 15 

340 That there shall be at least on member of staff on duty at all times the premises are in operation who is 

trained and proficient in the operation of the CCTV system and who is capable of operating and retrieving 

footage at the request of police, council or other authorised officers. 

342 That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the Police shall be 

installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable of sharing information about 

banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be 

able to identify fake or forged ID documents to a reasonable standard. The system will be in operation at all 

times after 22:00 when the premises are in operation and will be used to record the details of all persons 

entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their assistants. Entry to the 

premises will not be permitted without the production of the relevant ID document and / or if the person's 

details are already stored on the system and they are identified using a biometric identification system. 

343 That at all times the premises are in operation under the premises licence there will be at least one 

member of staff trained to a satisfactory standard able to operate the ID scan system and able to retrieve 

data from the system on request of police, council or or other authorised officers. 

346 That the internal security door leading to the Old Kent Road will be fitted with an automatic security light 

and sound cut-out device which will automatically shut down all music systems when opened. 

347 That all beverages will be served in plastic / polycarbonate receptacles, no glasses or bottles will be 

permitted in the public areas of the venue. 

348 That all incidents of violence and / or disorder that result in an injury will be reported to the police as 

soon as practicable. The reasoning behind any delayed report will be recorded in the incident report book. 

This report book will be made available for inspection by police, council or other authorised officers on 

request. 

349 That acoustic seals, brushes and self-closers (in accordance with BS 6459 Pt. 1 1984) shall be installed 

to all doors and fire doors leading out into external areas so as to minimise sound escape from the 

premises. 

350 That sound insulation shall be installed to baffle any vents or air extraction systems to prevent sound 

escape from the premises.  

351 That all external plant required for the operation of the premises (air handling plant, condensers, kitchen 

extraction systems, etc.) shall be designed, installed and maintained to ensure that noise output from the 

external plant does not cause a public nuisance or intrude inside the nearest, or most exposed, noise 

sensitive premises.  

352 That amplified music, song or speech shall not be broadcast in external areas at any time. 

353 That no drinks shall be permitted outside at any time. 

354 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen 

and read, requesting to the effect that patrons do not take drinks outside. 

355 That any queue to enter the premises must be contained within suitable barriers and supervised at all 

times by door supervisors  

41



 

Page 10 of 15 

356 That external waste handling and cleaning of external areas, collections and deliveries shall only occur 

between the hours of 08.00hrs and 23.00hrs. 

357 That a comprehensive Dispersal Policy shall be produced and implemented at the premises, with all 

staff trained on the most up to date policy. A record of staff training on the Dispersal Policy shall be kept at 

the premises and a copy of the policy and such training records shall be made available to the council or 

police on request. 

358 That licensable activities shall cease at a minimum 30 minutes before the premises' closing hours. 

359 That on Sunday after 00:30, on Wednesday and Thursday after 01:30 and on Friday and Saturday after 

02:00 there shall be no new entry to the premises, other than those who leave the premises for the purpose 

of smoking a cigarette, those persons shall be subject to a further search on the re-entry to the premises. 

362 That all security staff shall be in radio communication with each other and the duty manager whilst 

working at the premises. 

363 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by 

customers warning of potential criminal activity that may target patrons such as theft. 

364 An incident book / incident recording system shall be kept at the premises to record details of any of the 

following occurrences at the premises: 

• Instances of anti-social or disorderly behaviour 

• Violence 

• Calls to the police or fire brigade 

• Abuse of staff and / or customers 

• Ejections of people from the premises 

• Visits to the premises by the local authority, police or fire brigade 

• Refused sales of alcohol 

• Any malfunction in respect of the CCTV system Seizures of drugs at the premises 

• Any other relevant incidents 

The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location and description of each 

incident, the printed and signed name of the person reporting the incident and any action taken in respect of 

the incident. The incident book / incident recording system shall be available / be accessible at the premises 

at all times that the premises are in use in accordance with this licence and shall be made available to 

officers of the council, police or fire brigade on request. 

365 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by 

customers stating that all customers will be searched prior to entering the premises. 

366 That security staff should always attempt to search in front of a witness or, if possible, carry out the 

search within sight of the CCTV camera at the entrance to the Club. 

367 That any person who appears under the influence of drugs and will be refused entry. 

 

 

42



 

Page 11 of 15 

368 That where there is a suspicion that an individual is in possession of drugs that individual will be 

requested to submit to a search. If the individual refuses the search they will be ejected from the premises. 

Any person found in possession of drugs will be instructed to place the drugs in the drugs amnesty box at 

the premises. 

369 That the police will be called immediately if a person is found with a large quantity of drugs that 

suggests intent to supply, or in cases where a particularly dangerous weapon is found such as a firearm. No 

attempt will be made to force the person to remain at the premises however a good description of the person  

must be taken and be provided  to the police  In all cases where drugs or weapons are found on a person a 

detailed note shall be made in the incident log. 

370 That any person who appears to any staff member to be intoxicated and will be refused entry to the 

premises. 

371 That re-entry to the premises will not be permitted to any customer who has been ejected earlier on 

during a particular night, who has been banned or who hasin any way aggressively supported a person 

being ejected. 

372 That customers shall not be permitted to wear sunglasses, save for prescription glasses, inside the 

venue. 

373 That customers shall not be permitted to wear hats or hoods whilst inside the venue. 

374 That SIA staff shall periodically monitor who enters and exits parking lot. 

375 That the premises management reserve the right to ban anybody from the premises at any time or 

refuse entry to the premises by anybody at any time. The premises reserve the right to refused entry without 

explanation.  

376 That prior to entry or re-entry all customers must be subject to a search by the SIA security staff 

employed at the premises. Any person refusing such a search will not be permitted entry or re-entry to the 

premises.  

377 That customers shall be instructed that bulky items such as bulky bags and coats must be left in the 

cloakroom before entering the main area of the club. Anyone who refuses to place these types of belongings 

in the cloakroom will not be able to enter the main area of the club 

378 That all promoters hiring and using the premises must have attained a BIIAB Level 2 Award for Music 

Promoters prior to hiring and using the premises. 

379 That prior to the premises opening, security checks of the premises and the immediate vicinity that the 

premises are located in shall be undertaken. Details of such checks shall be recorded in the incident log. 

380 That security staff employed at the premises will be trained to be aware of what is happening inside the 

premises as well as on the door, and shall be instructed that patrols around the premises may be necessary. 

Consideration must be given to any hot spots within the premises and especially in the smoking area and 

regular monitoring of such areas must undertake by the security staff. 

381 That security staff shall be trained to be alert to and respond to alarms given by the DJ, toilet attendants 

or any other staff employed at the premises. 

43



 

Page 12 of 15 

382 That any customer who engages in anti-social behaviour in the smoking area shall not be permitted re-

entry to the premises. 

383 That customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises. 

Clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by customers 

stating that customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises. 

384 That staff who arrive early morning or depart late at night will be instructed to conduct themselves in 

such a manner to avoid causing disturbance or nuisance to nearby residents. 

386 That staff shall remove drinks receptacles from patrons who are attempting to leave the premises. 

388 That staff will advise customers not to congregate outside the premises or in the locale and shall be 

encouraged to disperse from the area. Any customers who are acting in a noisome or anti social manner 

when leaving the premises or when immediately outside of the premises will be requested to cease such 

behaviour. 

389 That two licensed taxi firms in the local area will be available to customers, so they can arrange suitable 

transportation home. If staff at the premises order a taxi for a customer they shall request that the taxi 

controller instructs the taxi-driver not to sound the vehicle's horn on arrival, but to approach a staff member 

and let the staff member know that the driver has arrived. Staff will inform the patron upon the arrival of their 

taxi. 

390 That a member of management will be visible with the door team until all customers have dispersed and 

shall ensure that the door team are acting effectively and in line with their responsibilities. 

391 That easily identified staff in high visibility vests will be assisting in customer dispersal, the clearing of 

any waste arising from the operation of the premises (including 'fliers') and the monitoring of customers 

whilst they move away from the premises.  

392 That the location of car parks in the area and other travel facilities shall be identified on all promotional 

materials, including the premises' website. 

393 That there will be enough staff in the cloakroom to ensure orderly and timely return of coats / 

possessions to customers. 

394 That details of transport links in the area (e.g. public transport options, taxi ranks etc.) shall be made 

available to customers on request. 

395 That the document titled 'Operational Polices for Club 701' as submitted on application for this licence 

shall be amended to reflect the conditions stated in this licence. 

396 That on Sundays prior to Bank Holiday Mondays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve the permitted 

opening hours of the premises are between 22:00 to 05:00 and licensable activities must cease at 04:00 on 

these days. 

431 That during any licensed entertainment on the premises all doors and windows leading out to external 

areas shall remain closed.  

430 That there shall be no movement of musical or amplification equipment to and from the premises 

between the hours of 23.00hrs and 08.00hrs.  

44



 

Page 13 of 15 

4AA That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling alcohol 

request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is attempting to purchase alcohol, 

provides valid photographic identification proving that the customer is at least 18 years old. Valid 

photographic identification is composed of a driving licence, passport, UK armed services ID card and any 

Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as the Proof of Age London (PAL) card. 

4AK That the licensee, premises' management or premises' DPS shall attend local 'Pub Watch' meetings if 

a 'Pub Watch' scheme exists in the local area. 

 

45



 

Page 14 of 15 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority   

 
840 That all directors and management of MYTRIBE Limited shall not be allowed any involvement in the 

running of the premises at any time that licensable activities are taking place. 

841 That a minimum of 3 SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the premises if the premises 

open before 00:00 hours, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. They will 

be employed each night that the premises are in operation and will be on duty to receive patrons at the 

stated opening time of 22:00; after 00:00 hours, a minimum of 6 SIA registered door supervisors shall be 

employed, one of whom shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. At least two will be  

provided with, and will use, electronic search wands. The electronic search wands shall be used at all times 

that the premises are open in respect of the search of all persons who wish to enter the premises. This 

includes all DJ's and associated staff and their equipment 

46



 

Page 15 of 15 

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached 

  
 
 
Licence No. 860699 

Plan No. 01 

Plan Date 11.12.13 
 

 

47



Page 1 of 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  
 
 
 

 Premises licence number                               851424 
  

        Part 1 - Premises details  
  
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description  
Club 701 
Basement And Ground Floors 
516 Old Kent Road 
 
Ordnance survey map reference (if applicable): 177968534180 
Post town: London Post code: SE1 5BA 
Telephone number  
 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
Plays - Indoors 
Films - Indoors 
Live Music - Indoors 
Recorded Music - Indoors 
Performance of Dance - Indoors 
Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors 
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 
 
The opening hours of the premises  
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 
 
Wednesday        22:00 - 03:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 05:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 05:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 05:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 02:00 
 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 
  
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence 
Plays - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 

Regulatory Services 
Licensing Unit 

Hub 1, 3rd Floor 
PO Box 64529 

London, SE1P 5LX 

48



Page 2 of 15 

Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Films - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Live Music - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Recorded Music - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Performance of Dance - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Entertainment Similar to live/recorded music / dance - Indoors 
Wednesday        22:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            22:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 22:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             22:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               22:00 - 01:00 
 
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors 
Wednesday        23:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            23:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 23:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             23:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               23:00 - 01:00 
 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed on premises 
Wednesday        23:00 - 02:00 
Thursday            23:00 - 04:00 
Friday                 23:00 - 04:00 
Saturday             23:00 - 04:00 
Sunday               23:00 - 01:00 

49



50



Page 4 of 15 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -  

(a). At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or 

(b). At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal 

Licence is suspended. 

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who 

holds a Personal Licence. 

107 Any individual carrying out security activities at the premises must be. 

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act 2001; 

or 

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act. 

485 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 

substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises - 

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require, encourage, individuals 

to - 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises 

before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public 

or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining 

a licensing objective; 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase 

and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner carries a significant risk of 

undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional poster or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the 

premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or 

to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; and 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person 

is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability). 

487 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where 

it is reasonably available. 

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must  ensure that an age verification 

policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of 

51



Page 5 of 15 

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or 

such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 

identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either 

(a) a holographic mark; or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

489 The responsible person shall ensure that - 

(a) Where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other 

than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures - 

(i) Beer or cider: 1/2 pint; 

(ii) Gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) Still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to 

customers on the premises; and 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the 

customer is made aware that these measures are available, 

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1): 

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqour Duties Act 1979; 

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula P = D + (D x V), where- 

(i) P is the permitted price, 

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of 

the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence - 

(i) the holder of the premises licence: 

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or 

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence; 

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 

certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 

member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be 

a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually 

52



Page 6 of 15 

given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.  

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day 

("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 

change to the rate of duty or value added tax; 

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take 

place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

 

53



Page 7 of 15 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule  

276 That the premises shall be adequately ventilated to allow doors and windows to remain closed during 

licensed entertainment. 

288 That a CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in full working order. The CCTV system will 

record footage of evidential quality in all lighting conditions and should be able to capture a clear facial 

image of all persons that enter the venue. All public areas will be covered by the CCTV system including the 

bar and smoking areas. 

289 All CCTV footage shall be kept for a period of thirty one (31) days and shall be made immediately 

available for inspection to officers of the Police and the Council on request. 

297 That a drugs / weapons amnesty box, approved by the police, shall be installed and maintained in use 

at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation. 

302 The manager shall notify the police of all drugs or weapons seized and deposited in the amnesty box as 

soon as possible and arrange for the police to collect the contents of the amnesty box as soon as is 

practicable to do so. 

303 That the licensee shall require any regular and external promoters or any other 3rd parties hiring the 

premises to complete the 'Venue Hire Agreement' provided by Southwark Police Licensing Unit and, once 

completed, you shall ensure that a copy of the agreement is provided to the central licensing unit as detailed 

on the form 696 and to Southwark Police Licensing Unit a minimum of fourteen days prior to the date of hire. 

305 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen 

and read, requesting that patrons leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner that is respectful to 

neighbours. 

307 That an accommodation limit shall be set in respect of the premises. All staff at the premises shall be 

made aware of the accommodation limit. The SIA security staff employed at the premises shall be 

responsible for ensuring that the accommodation limit is not exceeded and shall use counting devices to 

ensure that the accommodation limit is not exceeded. Once the accommodation limit of the premises has 

been reached the premises shall operate a 'one in, one out' policy. 

309 That a sound limiting device shall be installed, set and maintained, to ensure the maximum levels of 

volume and bass of music, song or speech from licensed entertainment permitted by the amplification 

system, does not cause a public nuisance in the vicinity of the premises or intrude inside the nearest or most 

exposed noise sensitive premises. 

320 That the sound level of the music being played at the premises will be gradually reduced until no music 

is audible during the hour before the premises shuts. During this period lighting levels at the premises 

will be gradually increased until the premises are fully lit. 

336 That a personal licence holder is on the premises and on duty at all times after 22:00 when intoxicating 

liquor is supplied. 

 

 

54



Page 8 of 15 

340 That there shall be at least on member of staff on duty at all times the premises are in operation who is 

trained and proficient in the operation of the CCTV system and who is capable of operating and retrieving 

footage at the request of police, council or other authorised officers. 

341 That a minimum of 6 SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the premises, one of whom 

shall be female, at all times that the premises are in use. They will be employed each night that the premises 

are in operation and will be on duty to receive patrons at the stated opening time of 22:00. At least two will 

be provided with, and will use, electronic search wands in respect of the search of all persons who wish to 

enter the premises. This includes all DJ's and associated staff and their equipment. 

342 That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the Police shall be 

installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable of sharing information about 

banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be 

able to identify fake or forged ID documents to a reasonable standard. The system will be in operation at 

all times after 22:00 when the premises are in operation and will be used to record the details of all persons 

entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their assistants. Entry to the 

premises will not be permitted without the production of the relevant ID document and / or if the person's 

details are already stored on the system and they are identified using a biometric identification system. 

343 That at all times the premises are in operation under the premises licence there will be at least one 

member of staff trained to a satisfactory standard able to operate the ID scan system and able to retrieve 

data from the system on request of police, council or or other authorised officers. 

344 That all staff concerned in the sale or supply of intoxicating liquor shall undertake a recognised training 

scheme for such duties. Records of such training should be kept at the premises and made available for 

inspection to police, council or other authorised officers on request. 

345 That no beverages will be consumed in the smoking area. Patrons will be encouraged to leave this area 

as soon as practicable. At least one member of SIA staff will be situated in the smoking area at all times 

the premises are in operation. 

346 That the internal security door leading to the Old Kent Road will be fitted with an automatic security light 

and sound cut-out device which will automatically shut down all music systems when opened. 

347 That all beverages will be served in plastic / polycarbonate receptacles, no glasses or bottles will be 

permitted in the public areas of the venue. 

348 That all incidents of violence and / or disorder that result in an injury will be reported to the police as 

soon as practicable. The reasoning behind any delayed report will be recorded in the incident report book. 

This report book will be made available for inspection by police, council or other authorised officers on 

request. 

349 That acoustic seals, brushes and self-closers (in accordance with BS 6459 Pt. 1 1984) shall be installed 

to all doors and fire doors leading out into external areas so as to minimise sound escape from 

the premises.  

 

55



Page 9 of 15 

350 That sound insulation shall be installed to baffle any vents or air extraction systems to prevent sound 

escape from the premises.  

351 That all external plant required for the operation of the premises (air handling plant, condensers, kitchen 

extraction systems, etc.) shall be designed, installed and maintained to ensure that noise output from the 

external plant does not cause a public nuisance or intrude inside the nearest, or most exposed, noise 

sensitive premises.  

352 That amplified music, song or speech shall not be broadcast in external areas at any time. 

353 That no drinks shall be permitted outside at any time. 

354 That clearly legible signage will be prominently displayed at all patron exits, where it can easily be seen 

and read, requesting to the effect that patrons do not take drinks outside. 

355 That any queue to enter the premises must be contained within suitable barriers and supervised at all 

times by door supervisors 

356 That external waste handling and cleaning of external areas, collections and deliveries shall only occur 

between the hours of 08.00hrs and 23.00hrs. 

357 That a comprehensive Dispersal Policy shall be produced and implemented at the premises, with all 

staff trained on the most up to date policy. A record of staff training on the Dispersal Policy shall be kept at 

the premises and a copy of the policy and such training records shall be made available to the council or 

police on request. 

358 That licensable activities shall cease at a minimum 30 minutes before the premises’ closing hours. 

359 That on Sunday after 00:30, on Wednesday and Thursday after 01:30 and on Friday and Saturday after 

02:00 there shall be no new entry to the premises, other than those who leave the premises for the purpose 

of smoking a cigarette, those persons shall be subject to a further search on the re-entry to the premises. 

360 That customers permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises to smoke must be 

restricted to a designated smoking area. No more than 7 customers will be permitted to remain in the 

designated smoking area at any one time. 

361 That all security staff employed at the premises will hold a current valid SIA license. 

362 That all security staff shall be in radio communication with each other and the duty manager whilst 

working at the premises. 

363 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by 

customers warning of potential criminal activity that may target patrons such as theft. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56



Page 10 of 15 

364 An incident book / incident recording system shall be kept at the premises to record details of any of the 

following occurrences at the premises: 

• Instances of anti-social or disorderly behaviour 

• Violence 

• Calls to the police or fire brigade 

• Abuse of staff and / or customers 

• Ejections of people from the premises 

• Visits to the premises by the local authority, police or fire brigade 

• Refused sales of alcohol 

• Any malfunction in respect of the CCTV system Seizures of drugs at the premises 

• Any other relevant incidents 

The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location and description of each 

incident, the printed and signed name of the person reporting the incident and any action taken in respect of 

the incident. The incident book / incident recording system shall be available / be accessible at the premises 

at all times that the premises are in use in accordance with this licence and shall be made available to 

officers of the council, police or fire brigade on request. 

365 That clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by 

customers stating that all customers will be searched prior to entering the premises. 

366 That security staff should always attempt to search in front of a witness or, if possible, carry out the 

search within sight of the CCTV camera at the entrance to the Club. 

367 That any person who appears under the influence of drugs and will be refused entry. 

368 That where there is a suspicion that an individual is in possession of drugs that individual will be 

requested to submit to a search. If the individual refuses the search they will be ejected from the premises. 

Any person found in possession of drugs will be instructed to place the drugs in the drugs amnesty box at 

the premises. 

369 That the police will be called immediately if a person is found with a large quantity of drugs that 

suggests intent to supply, or in cases where a particularly dangerous weapon is found such as a firearm. No 

attempt will be made to force the person to remain at the premises however a good description of the person  

must be taken and be provided  to the police  In all cases where drugs or weapons are found on a person a 

detailed note shall be made in the incident log. 

370 That any person who appears to any staff member to be intoxicated and will be refused entry to the 

premises. 

371 That re-entry to the premises will not be permitted to any customer who has been ejected earlier on 

during a particular night, who has been banned or who hasin any way aggressively supported a person 

being ejected. 

372 That customers shall not be permitted to wear sunglasses, save for prescription glasses, inside the 

venue. 

57



Page 11 of 15 

373 That customers shall not be permitted to wear hats or hoods whilst inside the venue. 

374 That SIA staff shall periodically monitor who enters and exits parking lot. 

375 That the premises management reserve the right to ban anybody from the premises at any time or 

refuse entry to the premises by anybody at any time. The premises reserve the right to refused entry without 

explanation.  

376 That prior to entry or re-entry all customers must be subject to a search by the SIA security staff 

employed at the premises. Any person refusing such a search will not be permitted entry or re-entry to the 

premises. 

377 That customers shall be instructed that bulky items such as bulky bags and coats must be left in the 

cloakroom before entering the main area of the club. Anyone who refuses to place these types of belongings 

in the cloakroom will not be able to enter the main area of the club 

378 That all promoters hiring and using the premises must have attained a BIIAB Level 2 Award for Music 

Promoters prior to hiring and using the premises. 

379 That prior to the premises opening, security checks of the premises and the immediate vicinity that the 

premises are located in shall be undertaken. Details of such checks shall be recorded in the incident 

log. 

380 That security staff employed at the premises will be trained to be aware of what is happening inside the 

premises as well as on the door, and shall be instructed that patrols around the premises may be necessary. 

Consideration must be given to any hot spots within the premises and especially in the smoking area and 

regular monitoring of such areas must undertake by the security staff. 

381 That security staff shall be trained to be alert to and respond to alarms given by the DJ, toilet attendants 

or any other staff employed at the premises. 

382 That any customer who engages in anti-social behaviour in the smoking area shall not be permitted re-

entry to the premises. 

383 That customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises. 

Clearly legible notices will be prominently displayed where they can easily be seen and read by customers 

stating that customers using the smoking area will be subject to a search upon re-entry to the premises. 

384 That staff who arrive early morning or depart late at night will be instructed to conduct themselves in 

such a manner to avoid causing disturbance or nuisance to nearby residents. 

385 That towards the end of trade on each day announcements will be made via the premises' PA system 

requesting that customers leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner and reminding customer that 

they cannot take drinks outside of the premises. 

386 That staff shall remove drinks receptacles from patrons who are attempting to leave the premises. 

387 That patrons will be requested to leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner. 

388 That staff will advise customers not to congregate outside the premises or in the locale and shall be 

encouraged to disperse from the area. Any customers who are acting in a noisome or anti social manner 

when leaving the premises or when immediately outside of the premises will be requested to cease such 

58



Page 12 of 15 

behaviour. 

389 That two licensed taxi firms in the local area will be available to customers, so they can arrange suitable 

transportation home. If staff at the premises order a taxi for a customer they shall request that the taxi 

controller instructs the taxi-driver not to sound the vehicle's horn on arrival, but to approach a staff member 

and let the staff member know that the driver has arrived. Staff will inform the patron upon the arrival of their 

taxi. 

390 That a member of management will be visible with the door team until all customers have dispersed and 

shall ensure that the door team are acting effectively and in line with their responsibilities. 

391 That easily identified staff in high visibility vests will be assisting in customer dispersal, the clearing of 

any waste arising from the operation of the premises (including 'fliers') and the monitoring of customers 

whilst they move away from the premises.  

392 That the location of car parks in the area and other travel facilities shall be identified on all promotional 

materials, including the premises' website. 

393 That there will be enough staff in the cloakroom to ensure orderly and timely return of coats / 

possessions to customers. 

394 That details of transport links in the area (e.g. public transport options, taxi ranks etc.) shall be made 

available to customers on request. 

395 That the document titled 'Operational Polices for Club 701' as submitted on application for this licence 

shall be amended to reflect the conditions stated in this licence. 

396 That on Sundays prior to Bank Holiday Mondays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve the permitted 

opening hours of the premises are between 22:00 to 05:00 and licensable activities must cease at 04:00 on 

these days. 

431 That during any licensed entertainment on the premises all doors and windows leading out to external 

areas shall remain closed. 

426 That customers must be at least 21 years old to gain entry to the premises. 

430 That there shall be no movement of musical or amplification equipment to and from the premises 

between the hours of 23.00hrs and 08.00hrs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

59



Page 13 of 15 

 

4AA That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling alcohol 

request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is attempting to purchase alcohol, 

provides valid photographic identification proving that the customer is at least 18 years old. Valid 

photographic identification is composed of a driving licence, passport, UK armed services ID card and 

any Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accredited card such as the Proof of Age London (PAL) card. 

4AI That a register of refused sales of alcohol shall be maintained at the premises and shall include the time 

and date of any refused sale of alcohol, the reason the sale was refused and the name of the member of 

staff who refused the sale. The register shall be clearly and legibly marked on the front cover as a register of 

refused sales, with the address of the premises and with the name and address of the licence holder. The 

register shall be made immediately available for inspection at the premises to council or police officers on 

request.  

4AK That the licensee, premises' management or premises' DPS shall attend local 'Pub Watch' meetings if 

a 'Pub Watch' scheme exists in the local area. 

 

60



Page 14 of 15 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority   

793 That all staff involved in the sale of alcohol or the operation of the premises under this licence shall be 

trained in their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 and trained in respect of the full terms and 

conditions of this licence. Records pertaining to such training shall be kept and be accessible at the 

premises at all times and will be updated every six months. The training records shall include the trainee's 

name (in block capitals), the trainer's name (in block capitals), the signature of the trainee, the signature of 

the trainer, the date(s) of training, a basic summary of what the training included and a declaration that the 

training has been received. The training records shall be made immediately available to officers of the police 

and / or the council upon request. 

840 That all directors and management of MYTRIBE Limited shall not be allowed any involvement in the 

running of the premises at any time that licensable activities are taking place. 

 

61



Page 15 of 15 

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached 

Licence No. 851424 

Plan No. 01 

Plan Date 11.12.13 

 
 
 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



APPENDIX E89



90



91



92



93



94



 
 

NOTICE OF DECISION  
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 7 November 2019. 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003: SECTION 53A: Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 
516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA 

 
This was a hearing to consider if it is appropriate to take interim steps pursuant to 
section 53B of the Licensing Act 2003, to promote the licensing objectives upon 
receipt of an application on 5 November 2019 by the Metropolitan Police Service, 
for a summary review of the premises licence relating to an incident that occurred in 
the early hours of 31 October 2019. 

 
1. Decision 
 

That the premises licence in respect of Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 
516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA be suspended with immediate effect as an 
interim step to promote the licensing objectives, pending the determination of the 
review application at a full hearing, to be held on 28 November 2019. The sub-
committee urge the parties to investigate and provide evidence at the full hearing of 
the timings both of the incident and CCTV footage and the operation of the ID 
scanning system in the days leading up to and following the incident. 

 
2. Reasons 
 

The sub-committee was satisfied on the evidence that a serious assault had taken 
place on the premises and had been contributed to by multiple breaches of 
premises licence conditions. In particular, either the premises should have been 
closed before the incident took place or the police should have been called much 
earlier, the premises should not have been operating in circumstances where the ID 
scanner was not working, no drinks or glassware should have been in the area 
where the incident occurred and no patrons should have been wearing hats or 
hoods. 

 
The sub-committee considered that the suspension was necessary and 
proportionate to promote the licensing objective of the prevention of crime and 
disorder. The sub-committee considered that other measures short of this were 
insufficient given the seriousness of the incident, the breaches of licence conditions 
on this occasion, and the previous operating history of the premises. 

 
3. Appeal rights 
 

There is no right of appeal to a Magistrates' Court against the licensing authority's 
decision at this stage. 

 
The premises licence holder may make representation against any interim steps 
imposed and a hearing to consider the representation will be held within 48 hours of 
receipt of the representation. 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION - 7 NOVEMBER 2019  
 
  

95



The holder of the premises licence may only make further representations if there 
has been a material change in circumstances since the authority made its 
determination 

 
Any representation should be in writing and cannot be received outside of normal 
office hours. 

 
Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Director of Law and Democracy  

 
Date: 7 November 2019 

 
 

 
 
 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION - 7 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

 

96



 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION – 28 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

 
NOTICE OF DECISION  

 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – 28 NOVEMBER 2019 

 
LICENSING ACT 2003: SECTION 53A: CLUB 701, BASEMENT AND GROUND FLOORS, 516 
OLD KENT ROAD, LONDON SE1 5BA 
 
 
1. Decision  

 
That the council’s licensing sub-committee, having considered an application made under 
section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 by the Metropolitan Police Service for the review of the 
premises licence in respect of Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, 
London SE1 5BA and having had regard to all relevant representations decided to suspend 
the licence for a period of three months, to remove Alfred Manseray as the designated 
premises supervisor and to modify the conditions of the licence as follows: 
 
1. That the premises will be closed on Wednesdays. 

 
2. That the measures set out in the licensing compliance plan attached to the premises 

licence as annex 5 shall be implemented in full prior to the reopening of the premises. 
 

3. That there shall be no shisha smoking equipment on the premises at any time. 
 

4. That all security staff at the premises shall be supplied by an SIA approved contractor. 
 

5. That condition 288 of the licence shall be amended by the addition of the following: “The 
premises shall not be open at any time when the CCTV is not operating correctly.” 

 
6. That condition 342 of the license shall be reworded as follows:  
 

“That an ID scanning system of a specification to the reasonable satisfaction of the 
Police shall be installed and maintained at the premises. The system should be capable 
of sharing information about banned customers with other venues, identify the hologram 
on ID, read both passports and ID cards and be able to identify fake or forged ID 
documents to a reasonable standard. The system must be operating correctly at all 
times when the premises are open and will be used to record the details of all persons 

entering the premises including staff, members of the public, performers and their 
assistants. Entry to the premises will not be permitted without the production of the 
relevant ID document and / or if the person's details are already stored on the system 
and they are identified using a biometric identification system.” 

 
7. That Eric Doe shall play no part in the day-to-day management or operation of the 

premises. 
 
2. Reasons 

 
The licensing sub-committee heard from the representative of the Metropolitan Police Service, 
the applicant for the review, who referred to his previous representations (considered at the 
interim steps hearing on 7th November 2019) and to his further witness statement dated 22nd 
November 2019, in which he exhibits CCTV stills from the night of the incident showing the 
licence holder Eric Doe behind the bar in the outside shisha area where the assault occurred. 
In his view, this undermined Mr Doe’s assertion that the incident had been the fault of others, 
in particular the designated premises supervisor, who had let him down. Mr Doe had been in 

97



 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION – 28 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

that area of the premises himself that night, yet had allowed multiple breaches of licence 
conditions to occur. It was clarified that the CCTV appeared to be 1 hour behind actual time, 
so that the incident had occurred after 3.00 a.m. by which time the premises should have 
been closed. In the view of the police, Mr Doe had shown a disregard for the licensing 
objectives and they had no confidence that he could manage the premises safely in future. 
The licence should therefore be revoked. If the sub-committee did not agree with that, the 
licence should be suspended for 3 months, the designated premises supervisor changed and 
an SIA approved contract team appointed. 
 
The sub-committee heard from the representative of the licensing authority, who referred to 
written representations submitted on her behalf. These traced the chronology of previous 
interventions by licensing officers attempting to secure compliance at the premises. It was 
clear that despite three separate licensing induction visits breaches of licence conditions had 
continued to occur, eventually leading to police cautions being issued for licensing offences. 
She urged the sub-committee to revoke the licence or, at the least, suspend the licence for 3 
months while all the remedial measures proposed by the licence holder were put in place. 
 
The representative of the licence holder entirely accepted that a serious incident had 
occurred. However, the sub-committee had to distinguish between a history of long-running 
minor non-compliance at the premises and this serious incident of violence, which was a one-
off and could not in itself justify revocation of the licence, particularly where – as here – it was 
possible for the premises to be run in future in a compliant way. The proposal was for Mr Doe 
to play no further part in managing the premises. A new designated premises supervisor had 
been identified. A comprehensive licensing compliance plan had been devised and would be 
implemented. The premises could cease trading on a Wednesday, as this had attracted an 
unfamiliar crowd. There would be no shisha smoking henceforth. The premises would be 
closed if either the CCTV or ID scanning system were not working. A 6 week suspension was 
volunteered, which would allow time for the new regime to bed in. 
 
The sub-committee took account of the fact that a serious assault had taken place on the 
premises which had been caused or contributed to by multiple breaches of premises licence 
conditions. The premises should have been closed before the incident took place, the ID 
scanner was not working, no drinks or glassware should have been in the shisha area and no 
patrons should have been allowed to wear hats or hoods. 
 
Revocation was considered, but on balance the sub-committee took the view that a 3 month 
suspension of the licence, the removal of the designated premises supervisor and the 
additional conditions set out above would be sufficient in this case to promote the licensing 
objectives, in particular the prevention of crime and disorder. The sub-committee considered 
that other measures short of suspension were insufficient given the seriousness of the 
incident, the multiple breaches of licence conditions and the previous operating history of the 
premises. 
 
The sub-committee noted with approval the applicant’s willingness to eliminate single-use 
plastics in glasses and straws. 
 
In reaching its decision, the sub-committee had regard both to the revised guidance and to its 
own statement of licensing policy, and considered that its decision was appropriate and 
proportionate in order to promote the licensing objectives, in particular the prevention of crime 
and disorder. 
 

 
 
 
3. Appeal rights 

98



 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - NOTICE OF DECISION – 28 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

 
 This decision is open to appeal by either 
 

a) The applicant for the review 
b) The premises licence holder 
c) Any other person who made relevant representations in relation to the application   

 
Such appeal must be commenced by notice of appeal given by the appellant to the justices’ 
clerk for the Magistrates’ Court for the area within the period of 21 days beginning with the day 
on which the appellant was notified by this licensing authority of the decision. 

 
This decision does not have effect until either  

 
a) The end of the period for appealing against this decision; or 
b) In the event of any notice of appeal being given, until the appeal is disposed of. 

 

4. Review of interim steps pending appeal 
 

At the conclusion of the review hearing the licensing sub-committee reviewed the interim 
steps to determine which interim steps were appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives, pursuant to section 53D of the Licensing Act 2003. The sub-committee concluded 
that these interim steps were appropriate: 

 

 To suspend the premises licence. 
 

The interim steps are open to appeal by: 
 

a) The chief officer of police for the police area in which the premises is situated; or 
b) The holder of the premises licence 

 
Such appeal must be commenced by notice of appeal given by the appellant to the justices’ 
clerk for the Magistrates Court for the area within the period of 21 days beginning with the day 
on which the appellant was notified by this licensing authority of the decision. 

 
 

Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Director of Law and Democracy  
 

 
Date: 28 November, 2019. 

99



Club 701 – Complaints 

rdate refno catg ioff unit Notes 
27/01/2020 918418 L70  Lic General Enquiry WM LIC  Southwark Licensing 
04/03/2022 972192 L72  Public nuisance RK LIC  Southwark Licensing 
04/03/2022 972228 L72  Public nuisance RK LIC  Southwark Licensing 
03/05/2022 975874 L72  Public nuisance RK LIC  Southwark Licensing 
30/12/2022 991433 L72  Public nuisance RK LIC  Southwark Licensing 
12/06/2023 A00979 L72  Public nuisance SK LIC  Southwark Licensing 
21/08/2023 A05514 N05  People Noise - Adjacent 

to Licensed Premises 
CH NTT  Noise Team 

16/01/2024 A14022 L73  Unlicensed Premises / 
activity 

SK LIC  Southwark Licensing 

APPENDIX F
100



CLUB 701 - NTE Visits 

adate desc officer adtext 
18/01/2020 00:55 NTE 

Visit 
FC 18/ 1/2020   00:55   FRC closed. 

14/02/2020 23:38 NTE 
Visit 

FC 14/ 2/2020   23:38   FRCno activity all shut. 

11/01/2020 00:01 NTE 
Visit 

FC Closed. 

12/01/2020 02:05 NTE 
Visit 

FC Closed. 

31/01/2020 23:00 NTE 
Visit 

AH Premises closed. 

02/02/2020 00:40 NTE 
Visit 

AH Premises closed. 

07/02/2020 23:00 NTE 
Visit 

CJ Visit to the premises with Ken Andrews, the premises was 
closed ATOV.K-Che was open but quiet. Action: Append to 
APP 

08/02/2020 00:35 NTE 
Visit 

CJ Visit to the premises with Ken Andrews, the premises was 
closed nomovement in or out. I waited around for 20 
minutes and no one enteredor left the premises. Action: 
Append to APP. 

21/02/2020 23:30 NTE 
Visit 

AH Premises closed. 

28/02/2020 00:18 NTE 
Visit 

RK Compliance Visit with Adam Burchett & PC Maria 
O’Mahoney premisesclosed and non – operational. 

08/03/2020 01:32 NTE 
Visit 

CJ Visit to the premises with Ketchi, to check the premises 
were closed.ATOV the premises were quiet and 
closed.Action: Append to APP 

14/03/2020 00:43 NTE 
Visit 

RK Compliance visit with Ken Andrews (Principal Health & 
Safety Officer)to check if premises was closed due to 
licence suspension from reviewhearing.Premises closed 
and non – operational ATOV. 

24/10/2020 23:06 NTE 
Visit 

CJ Premises closed ATOV 

25/10/2020 22:32 NTE 
Visit 

CJ Premises closed ATOV 

01/11/2020 23:01 NTE 
Visit 

CJ Premises closed ATOV 

09/02/2020 01:58 NTE 
Visit 

CJ Visit to the premises with Roy Fielding and Jonathan 
Ducker, thepremises was closed ATOV, no movement in or 
out of the premises lightswere of and the area directly 
outside the premises was quiet. Action:Append to APP 

23/02/2020 01:05 NTE 
Visit 

FC Closed no activity. 

24/06/2023 00:55hrs 
NTE Visit 

RM  00:55hrs No BBQ. Visited Kent Lounge with the owner and 
it was notopen and had not been open all night due to re-
decoration work beingunder taken… it smelt very strongly 
of new paint.Visited Club 701 again with owner and went 
into the basement to viewthe CCTV. The system seems to 
have a huge storage now and has muchmore than 31 days 
that can be viewed… in fact there was footageavailable 
going back to the beginning of May. 

APPENDIX G
101



26/09/2020 22:10 NTE 
Visit 

FC              26/ 9/2020   22:00   FRCpremises open, lots of students 
leaving some sort of party tonight.Called Charlie Jerrom as 
the premises licence was suspended for lastfew months 
surprised to see them open.  Charlie said  they 
haverecently been allowed to open again. watched 
customers gather outsideand not leaving quickly poor 
social distancing group of 50 youths. 

01/11/2020 22:50 NTE 
Visit 

FC               1/11/2020   22:50   FRCclosed shutters down lights on, a 
group of people on the corner oficelands waiting for taxi. 

08/04/2022 22:48 NTE 
Visit 

RK                  Premises closed and non-operational ATOV. 

15/04/2022 00:21 NTE 
Visit 

RK                  Premises closed and non-operational ATOV. 

22/04/2022 23:57 NTE 
Visit 

RK                  Premises closed and non-operational ATOV. 

13/05/2022 23:42 NTE 
Visit 

RK                  Visit to premises with Farhad Chowdhury (Principal Health 
& SafetyEnvironmental Health Officer).Premises 
operational with X2 SIA at entrance searching X4 
patronsbefore entering the premises. No sound escape 
from premises fromfront or side of premises ATOV.No ASB 
witnessed in the immediate vicinity of the premises. 

12/01/2024 NTE Visit SK                   Drove past the Location of the Club at around 23:30 No 
Issues withParking, Case to be closed and reopened if we 
receive anothercomplaint of a similiar nature 

 

102



CLUB 701 TENs 

refno start_date end_date times personal 
lic 
holder 

max 
no 
people 

sale of 
alcohol 

for 
consump 

reg 
ent 

late night 
refreshment 

late 
ten 

police 
obj 

ept 
obj 

desc1 

875157 01/08/2021 02/08/2021 22:00 - 05:00 Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes No No No 

875462 12/09/2021 13/09/2021 01:00AM - 
04:00AM 

Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

876222 05/12/2021 06/12/2021 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

876351 19/12/2021 20/12/2021 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 265 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

876418 02/01/2022 03/01/2022 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

877084 03/04/2022 04/04/2022 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

877201 18/04/2022 19/04/2022 22:00 - 04:00 Yes 380 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

877507 22/05/2022 23/05/2022 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

877948 17/07/2022 18/07/2022 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

878194 24/08/2022 25/08/2022 22:00 - 04:00 Yes 175 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

878214 29/08/2022 30/08/2022 22:00 - 04:00 Yes 200 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No Yes EPT OBJECTION 
LATE TEN 

880302 30/05/2023 30/05/2023 00: 05-- 04:00 Yes 200 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No Less than five 
days notice 
rejected 

880634 19/07/2023 20/07/2023 21:00 - 02:00 Yes 140 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

880779 02/08/2023 03/08/2023 21:00 - 03:00 Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

880831 12/08/2023 13/08/2023 04:00 -- 05:00 AM 
each day 

Yes 350 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

880865 16/08/2023 17/08/2023 22:00 -- 03:00 Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

APPENIDIX H
103



880917 28/08/2023 29/08/2023 23:00 - 05:00 Yes 300 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

880961 30/08/2023 31/08/2023 22:00 -- 03:00 Yes 300 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No rejected no 24hr 
gap between tens. 

881128 20/09/2023 21/09/2023 22:00 - 03:00 Yes 300 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

881256 11/10/2023 12/10/2023 21:00 -- 03:00 Yes 300 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

881333 22/10/2023 23/10/2023 01:00 - 04:00 Yes 275 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

881433 01/11/2023 02/11/2023 21:00 -- 03:00 Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes No No No 

881819 06/12/2023 07/12/2023 21:00 - 03:30 Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

881941 20/12/2023 21/12/2023 10:00 -- 03:30 Yes 250 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

881987 26/12/2023 28/12/2023 26/12 10:00 - 
04:00    
27/12 10:00 - 
03:30 

Yes 300 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

882040 10/01/2024 11/01/2024 22:00 -- 03:00 Yes 200 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

882103 17/01/2024 18/01/2024 10:00 - 03:30 Yes 200 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No rejected less than 
5 days notice 

882181 24/01/2024 25/01/2024 22:00 -- 03:30 Yes 200 Yes On 
Premises 

Yes Yes Yes No No 

104



-�51 � q11� �� "l 
f1 ' 

5Bk. 

eA �/ 
I 

I 

' 

.-:d 

81 
84 

MJ�t 

�::::=::±::::;�-__i.lr=:

l

::.�:.:•:::.;�:.(i=�.:.1�:...;-i-a-te ___ 1•�•::�:�•� �•1 

J: 11 q�:-7' I I I \)f\O 1 -i-j-�� 
I � ... oCOIL''s,.I� J .... -----n- - .,_ 
l tJV• ---- I I U I 

I _1 ____ .,._ I II 1 
-- r I " I 

I 1 11 
I I 11 ', 
1• 1Lrnr. Of Po,t, 
11 I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

• • Southwark Maps 50m 

J.---
=s-cale = 1 :1323.000 

-© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey AC0000806116. La�d Registry Index data is subject to Crown copyrighrand is reproduced
with the permission of Land Registry The default base map is OS mapping remast,ed by Europa Technologies. ,/ 

''
I 
\ 
I 
r ._ 

APPENDIX I
105



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
This page is intentionally blank. 



  
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023-24 
 
NOTE:  Original held by Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to  
  Andrew Weir - Tel: 020 7525 7222 
 

 
Name No of 

copies 
Name No of 

copies 

 
Members 
 
Councillor Renata Hamvas (Chair) 
Councillor Barrie Hargrove 
Councillor Charlie Smith 
 
Reserve 
 
Councillor Sunny Lambe 
  
  
 

 
 
 
By email 
By email 
By email 

 
 
 

By email 
 
 
 

 

 

Officers (by email only) 
 

Debra Allday, legal team 
Andrew Heron, licensing team 
Jayne Tear, licensing team 
Matt Tucker, licensing team 
P.C. Ian Clements Metropolitan 
Police Service 
Andrew Weir, constitutional team  
 
 
Total printed copies: 4 
 
Dated: 18 January 2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 

 


	Agenda
	5 Licensing Act 2003: Club 701, Basement and Ground Floors, 516 Old Kent Road, London SE1 5BA
	Appendix A: Current licence
	Appendix B: Review application and review certificate
	Appendix C: Previous premises licence
	Appendix D: Operating history documents
	Appendix E: Previous summary review and notice of decisions
	Appendix F: Ccomplaints log
	Appendix G: Night time economy team visits log
	Appendix H: Temporary event notices
	Appendix I: Map

	 
	24.01.19 Distribution List




